# IN THE WASHINGTON STATE COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION II

#### STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

Vs.

#### JAMES A. OLIVER

Appellant.

# APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF PIERCE COUNTY

Cause No. 09-1-05834-4

#### OPENING BRIEF OF APPELLANT

LANCE M. HESTER WSB #27813

HESTER LAW GROUP, INC., P.S. Attorneys for Appellant 1008 South Yakima Avenue, Suite 302 Tacoma, Washington 98405 (253) 272-2157

## **

#### II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. The trial court erred when Mr. Oliver was denied a complete defense.
- 2. The trial court erred when it granted the State's motion in limine barring evidence of Glenn Whitworth's background as a sex offender.
  - 3. The trial court erred when it admitted hearsay evidence.
- 4. The trial court erred when it admitted cumulative evidence through the State's use of the child hearsay statute.

#### III. <u>ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR</u>

- 1. Whether the trial court erred when it granted the State's motion in limine excluding references to Glenn Whitworth's sex offender status. (Assignments of Error #1 and 2).
- Whether the trial court erred when it admitted testimony that was both inadmissible hearsay and cumulative evidence.(Assignments of Error #3 and 4).

#### IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

#### A. Procedural History

On December 31, 2009, the State of Washington charged James Oliver with one count of Rape of a Child in the First Degree and five counts of Child Molestation in the First Degree. CP 1-3.

On July 11, 2011, the State filed an Amended Information changing its charges against Mr. Oliver to include one count of Rape of a Child in the First Degree, one count of Child Molestation in the First Degree, and one count of Attempted Child Molestation in the First Degree. CP 49-51. On August 23, 2011, Mr. Oliver was arraigned on the Amended Information, at which time he entered not guilty pleas to all three charges. RP 15, 16. The trial began on August 23, 2011, as well. See RP 12.

At the start of the trial, on August 23, 2011, trial initially proceeded with a child hearsay hearing that included testimony from two witnesses. RP 18, 37.

After jury voir dire, the court addressed motions in limine. RP 77.

Trial testimony lasted several days. On August 31, 2012, the jury returned guilty verdicts on the rape of a child in the first degree count and the child molestation in the first-degree count. RP 580. The jury did not reach a verdict on the attempted child molestation in the first degree count.

Mr. Oliver was sentenced on October 14, 2012. CP 265-279. In addition to standard sentencing conditions, the court sentenced Mr. Oliver to 129 months to life, an indeterminate sentence. CP 269.

On November 10, 2012, Mr. Oliver timely filed his Notice of Appeal to this court. CP 289.

#### B. Facts

On September 5, 2009, then nine-year-old D.O. told her older half-sister, D.M., that their father, James Oliver, had been touching D.O. RP 330. This led to an investigation that ultimately culminated in the trial that is the subject of this appeal.

By way of background, James Oliver was, for a time, married to Jeannie Whitworth<sup>1</sup>. James and Jeannie have since divorced. When they married, Jeannie brought to the marriage two children from two previous relationships. RP 118. One of those children was a girl named D.M., and the other child from a different relationship was named Tyler. RP 118. James and Jeannie had two children together, E.O. and D.O. RP 127, 128-129. Jeannie left James for a then-friend of James's named Glenn Whitworth, and they married. RP 265. Jeannie's relationship with Glenn Whitworth was essentially at the expense of her children. See, RP 133. That is to say, Glenn's past history as a sex offender presented issues that left James as the only custodial parent fit for the bunch. (See, RP 89-95 and CP 113-142 for defense position on this issue, including oral

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Jeannie Whitworth was her name at the time of trial. When married to the James Oliver, her last name was Oliver.

representations for proof offers.) This was just as true for the older two children that were not James' natural born children. While in James' custody, Jeannie had weekend visitation, but only under circumstances of Glenn having to be away from the home when the children were present. RP 264.

James parents, Bonnie and Maynard Oliver, allowed him and the children to live with them in Bonney Lake, Washington. RP 241-242. When D.M. and Tyler were a little older and during their teen years, both bounced around residence a bit, including a time when permission was granted for D.M. to live with her mother and Glenn. RP 135, RP 264.

During the times when all of the Oliver children lived in the Bonnie and Maynard Oliver residence (including D.M. and Tyler), the bedroom arrangement was as follows: Bonnie and Maynard had their own room upstairs; D.M. had her own room upstairs; E.O. and D.O. shared a room upstairs; and James and Tyler resided downstairs. RP 134, RP 245-246.

By the time D.O. told D.M. that her dad, James, had touched her, D.M. was not living in Bonnie and Maynard Oliver's' house. Tyler was living there from time to time, including a time when he spent a great deal of time sleeping on the upstairs couch. RP 272.

At trial, D.O. testified that James Oliver touched, "my chest and my vagina." RP 248, 250. She then told the jury that her brother Tyler also touched her. RP 249. She indicated Tyler touched her vagina, that it

was on the skin and not over clothing, and that she knew it was Tyler because she could see him. RP 249-250.

Regarding D.O.'s claims that her dad, James, touched her, D.O. specified he used his hand, that it occurred several times in both her room and in James' bed, that she was wearing pajamas, that he would feel around both her breasts and her vagina area, that it began when she was about five years old, and it stopped when she told somebody. RP 250-254. She also testified that on more than five occasions James put his finger inside her vagina and that it hurt. RP 255-256. She said it always happened at night. RP 257. She added that James told her not to tell anybody because she wouldn't be able to see him again. RP 258, 261.

During her testimony D.O. indicated that if James caught her looking at him while he was touching her he would hit her on her arm. RP 259.

During cross examination D.O. admitted to the following inconsistencies in her testimony: that she had previously made statements that any described abuse did not begin until she was six or seven years old (as opposed to trial testimony being five years old) (RP 266); and that she had previously testified that any of the alleged touching by Jim was always in her room (as opposed to downstairs) (RP 265).

D.O. admitted that during her years in Bonnie and Maynard's house she wanted to live with her mother. RP 264.

Prior to the start of trial testimony, both the State and the defense filed motions in limine. CP 26-31, 108-112.

Among the state's motions was a request to preclude reference to the prior conviction of Glenn Whitworth, his status as a convicted sex offender, or his prior status as a registered sex offender. CP 27. The defense responded to the State's motions in limine, requesting the court allow trial testimony and examination to include Mr. Whitworth's sex offender status, including that fact as an explanation of why D.O. was unable to live with her mother despite her desire to live with her. CP 113-142. This would have shown that D.O. knew it would take an accusation against James Oliver of greater magnitude than Mr. Whitworth's sex offender status to move her into her mother's home. See, CP 121-122. (See also, defense oral argument at RP 88-95.) The court granted the State's motion in limine on this issue and prohibited the defense from offering Glenn Whitworth's testimony as to his sex offender status in support of the defense theory of the case. RP 95. Specifically, the defense was not allowed to refer to Glenn Whitworth's sex offender status. conviction history, and former registration requirement.

During the defense case, James Oliver testified. RP 466. He proclaimed his love for his children. RP 477, 481, 495-496. He denied allegations brought by D.O., as well as the allegation brought by D.M.. RP 492-496, 505-506. James testified at length about the depth of interaction he and his parents had with the children and their activities.

RP 481-483. He professed his love for the children, with a particular focus on D.O. and E.O., as they were the two who were constant residents of his household. RP 481, 487-488. He also testified about D.O.'s persistent expressed desire to live with her mother, Jeannie Whitworth, and he documented her persistence toward achieving that move. RP 517. James offered testimony about Tyler Montgomery's anger issues, his tendency toward violent displays, and his history of deviant behavior related to D.O. RP 474-481.

In the end, the jury returned guilty verdicts on the two counts related to D.O. (rape of a child in the first degree and child molestation in the first degree). CP 231-232. The jury did not reach a decision as to the count related to D.M.'s allegation. CP 233.

Mr. Oliver was sentenced on October 14, 2012. CP 265-279. In addition to standard sentencing conditions, the court sentenced Mr. Oliver to serve time in the Department of Corrections for a period of 129 months to life. CP 269.

On November 10, 2012, Mr. Oliver timely filed his Notice of Appeal to this court. CP 289.

#### V. <u>ARGUMENT</u>

A. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT GRANTED THE STATE'S MOTION IN LIMINE EXCLUDING REFERENCES TO GLENN WHITWORTH'S SEX OFENDER HISTORY.

During pre-trial motions, the defense articulated in briefing and oral argument, that its defense would include presenting D.O.'s motivation for making false claims against Mr. Oliver. CP 121, RP 89-95.

As it was explained to the court, D.O.'s motive was to relocate from Bonnie and Maynard Oliver's house where she lived with her dad,
James Oliver and others, and move into a home with her mother. CP 121.

RP 90. That necessarily included moving in with her mother's husband,
Glenn Whitworth, a sex offender. The defense candidly alerted the court to the fact that its defense required the jury to see the broad picture regarding D.O.'s quest to relocate with her mother. Included in the defense presentation were (1) of all the reasons that D.O. wanted out of the Bonnie and Maynard Oliver house, (2) the obvious reason why she could not live there, (3) the sources of hope for the continuing possibility of living there, (4) the fact of her relocating with her mother after the allegations against James were brought, and (5) the magnitude of the allegation it took to get her there. CP 121, RP 89-95.

The Supreme Court has held that a defendant's right to present a defense stems both from the right to due process provided by the Fourteenth Amendment, see Chambers v. Mississippi, 410 U.S. 284, 294, 93 S.Ct 1038, 35 L.Ed.2d 297 (1973), and from the right "to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor," provided by the

Sixth Amendment, see Washington v. Texas, 388 U.S. 14, 23, 87 S.Ct. 1920, 18 L.Ed.2d 1019 (1967) (explaining that the right to compulsory process would be meaningless if the defendant lacked the right to use the witnesses whose presence he compelled). The Court stated:

The right to offer the testimony of witnesses, and to compel their attendance, if necessary, is in plain terms, the right to present a defense, the right to present the defendant's version of the facts as well as the prosecution's to the jury so it may decide where the truth lies. Just as an accused has the right to confront the prosecution's witnesses for the purpose of challenging their testimony, he has the right to present his own witnesses to establish a defense. This right is a fundamental element of due process of law.

Id.

Because a defendant's right to a complete defense is a due process due process right and falls under his right to defend (14<sup>th</sup> and 6<sup>th</sup> Amendments), the court reviews using the de novo standard. State v. Jones, 168 Wn.2d 713, 720, 230 P.3d 576 (2010).

"A defendant's right to present relevant evidence is not unlimited, but rather is subject to reasonable restrictions," such as procedural and evidentiary rules. <u>United States v. Scheffer</u>, 523 U.S. 303, 308, 118 S.Ct. 1261, 140 L.Ed.2d 413 (1998). Evidentiary rules do not violate a defendant's constitutional rights unless they "infring[e] upon a weighty interest of the accused and are arbitrary or disproportionate to the purposes they are designed to serve." <u>Holmes v. South Carolina</u>, 547 U.S. 319, 324, 126 S.Ct. 1727, 164 L.Ed.2d 503 (2006) (internal quotation marks omitted). Generally, it takes "unusually compelling circumstances . . . to

outweigh the strong state interest in administration of its trials." <u>Perry v.</u>
Rushen, 713 F.2d 1447, 1452 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1983).

The Supreme Court has elaborated upon these principles in cases where defendants have alleged that local or state court rules, or state evidentiary rules, by their own terms, intrude upon their constitutional right to present a complete defense. For example, in <a href="Holmes">Holmes</a>, the Court held that a defendant's constitutional rights were violated by an evidentiary rule that prevented the defendant from presenting evidence that a third party had committed the crime if the judge determined that the prosecutor's case was strong. 547 U.S. at 328-31. The Court determined that this evidentiary rule did not "rationally serve" the goal of "excluding evidence that has only a very weak logical connection to the central issues." <a href="Id">Id</a>, at 330.

In <u>Su Chia v. Cambra</u>, 360 F.3d 997 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. 2004), two DEA agents were murdered during an undercover sting operation. <u>Id</u>. at 999. The defendant, Mr. Chia, repeatedly claimed that he had not conspired with co-defendants, but rather had tried to talk them out of the plot to kill. <u>Id</u>. One of the co-defendants confirmed that Mr. Chia was not involved but would not testify for Mr. Chia on Fifth Amendment grounds. <u>Id</u>. at 1002. When Chia sought to introduce evidence of the co-defendant's statements in his defense, the trial court suppressed them as inadmissible hearsay. <u>Id</u>.

In evaluating Chia's claim, the Ninth Circuit first set-forth the standards for review of such cases before applying a five-part balancing test:

In a habeas proceeding, we have traditionally applied a balancing test to determine whether the exclusion of evidence in the trial court violated petitioner's due process rights, weighing the importance of the evidence against the state's interest in exclusion. Miller v. Stagner, 757 F.2d 988, 994 (9th Cir.), amended on other grounds, 768 F.2d 1090 (9th Cir. 1985). In balancing these interests, we must, on the one hand, afford "due weight to the substantial state interest in preserving orderly trials, in judicial efficiency, and in excluding unreliable . . . evidence." Miller, 757 F.2d at 995. On the other hand, we must stand vigilant guard over the principle that "the right to present a defense is fundamental" in our system of constitutional jurisprudence. Perry v. Rushen, 713 F.2d 1447, 1450-51 (9th Cir. 1983) (noting that "because this right is so important, language from some cases and commentary suggests that the defendant's right carries conclusive weight, and that the exclusion of any relevant evidence is unconstitutional"). In light of these competing interests, federal habeas courts must "determine what weight the various interests will carry when placed on the scales," Id. at 1450, and ultimately determine whether the decision of the state court to exclude the evidence in question was reasonable or unreasonable. In assessing the interests at issue in this case, we invoke the five-part balancing test formulated in Miller. These factors include: (1) the probative value of the excluded evidence on the central issue; (2) its reliability; (3) whether it is capable of evaluation by the trier of fact; (4) whether it is the sole evidence on the issue or is merely cumulative; and (5) whether it constitutes a major part of the attempted defense. Miller, 757 F.2d at 994.

Chia, 360 F.3d at 1003-04.

Finally, a recent Ninth Circuit case, <u>United States v. Stever</u>, 603
F.3d 747 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. 2010), is on point. In that case, the defendant, Stever, lived on a 400 acre piece of land where, on an isolated corner of the property, a marijuana grow operation was discovered. <u>Id</u>. at 750. Prior to

trial, Stever sought discovery from the government relating to the existence of Mexican drug trafficking organizations (DTO's) that were known to infiltrate public and private property and secretly grow marijuana there. Id. at 751. Additionally, Stever sought to proffer evidence at trial suggesting that the DTO's had recently infiltrated eastern Oregon, and were responsible for the marijuana on his property. Id. at 751. The district court first ruled that the government was not required to comply with the discovery request, stating that "evidence about who else was responsible for the grow was not relevant to assessing the likelihood that Stever was involved." Id. at 752-53. The Court also forbade Mr. Stever from presenting any evidence suggesting that Mexican DTO's were involved with the grow on his property. Id. Stever was convicted. Id. at 752.

The Ninth Circuit reversed, first holding that the district court's conclusion that the discovery request was "irrelevant" was "illogical" given the definition of relevant evidence within the Rules of Evidence. Id. at 753. The Court also concluded that the district court erred by suppressing Mr. Stever's attempt to proffer evidence that DTO's were involved with the grow operation on his land. Id. at 757. In reaching this conclusion, the Court first emphasized the important constitutional right to present a complete defense afforded by the 6<sup>th</sup> and 5<sup>th</sup> Amendments. Id. at 755. Additionally, the Court referenced the Miller factors (Miller v. Stagner, 757 F.2d 988, 994 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir.)) and applied each of them to the facts

in the case. <u>Id</u>. at 756. Specifically, the Court held that the DTO evidence was obviously probative on the central issue because the evidence would have "rebut[ed] the inference that [Stever] must have committed the [crime] because no one else was in a position to do so." <u>Id</u>. at 756 (*quoting* <u>United States v. Crosby</u>, 75 F.3d 1343, 1346-47 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1996)).

The Court found that the evidence was reliable because the existence of DTO's was known and investigated by the government. <u>Id</u>. at 756. The Court also found that the evidence was capable of being evaluated by the trier of fact because Mr. Stever could have an expert testify as to the existence of DTO's. <u>Id</u>. at 756-57. Regarding the last two <u>Miller</u> factors, the Court stated:

The last two Miller factors weigh most strongly in favor of finding that Stever's evidence was important to his attempted defense. Because the district court ruled sua sponte that Stever could not make his preferred defense in any form, it excluded "the sole evidence on [an] issue" that constitute[ed] a major part of the attempted defense." Precluded from pointing to any alternative explanation for the operation on his mother's property, Stever was confined to poking holes in the Government's case and, as his lawyer argued to no avail in closing, holding the prosecution to its burden of proof. Stever was, quite literally, prevented from making his defense.

<u>Id.</u> at 757 (internal citations omitted).

Evidence that a defendant seeks to introduce "must be of at least minimal relevance." <u>Id.</u> at 622. Defendants have a right to present only relevant evidence, with no constitutional right to present irrelevant evidence. <u>State v. Gregory</u>, 158 Wn.2d 759, 786 n.6, 147 P.3d 1201 (2006). "[I]f relevant, the burden is on the State to show the evidence is so

prejudicial as to disrupt the fairness of the fact-finding process at trial."

State v. Darden, 145 Wn.2d 612, 622, 41 P.3d 1189 (2002). The State's interest in excluding prejudicial evidence must also "be balanced against the defendant's need for the information sought," and relevant information can be withheld only "if the State's interest outweighs the defendant's need." Id. "[T]he integrity of the truthfinding process and [a] defendant's right to a fair trial" are important considerations. State v. Hudlow, 99

Wn.2d 1, 14, 659 P.2d 514 (1983). If the evidence has high probative value "it appears no state interest can be compelling enough to preclude its introduction consistent with the Sixth Amendment and Const. Art. 1, § 22." Id. at 16.

In <u>State v. Jones</u>, 168 Wn.2d 713, 230 P.3d 576 (2010), the defendant's niece accused him of rape. The defense sought to present evidence that he and his niece were at a drug induced sex party and that the sex was, thus, consensual. The trial court excluded the evidence as irrelevant. The Supreme Court stated, "this was not marginally relevant evidence," but rather "of extremely high probative value [constituting] Jones's entire defense." Id. at 721. The Court elaborated:

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