A. IS PERTAINING ` OAP -PEr LANT'S ASSIC;NM -INTS OF
ERIQRl

1; Has defendant failed to show that the trial court abused its

discretion in g- ranting the S'tate's motion in lirnine to preclude

reference to the victim's stela- father's staters as a registered sex

offender?

2. Has defendant failed to show that his right to present a

defense was violated b the court's exclusion of irrelevant.

e-v=idence?

3. Has defendant failed to preserve his claim regard the

admission ofD.O s video recorded forensic interview as being

cumulative for appellate review?

4, Has defendant failed to show that the trial court >abused its

discretion in admitting the tape of D. .'s forensic inten iew given

that such evidence was admissible under the child hearsay statute?'

B. STA` EMENT CIE THE CASE

1. Procedure

On December 31,, 2009, the Pierce County Prosecutor's Office

charged appellant, Jarnes Alan Oliver ("defendant" ), , wit:lr one count of

rape of a child in the first degree and five counts of child molestation is

the first degree. CAP 1 -1 On August 18, 2011, the State amended the

charges to one count of rape of a chip, in the first degree. against'D.O.

1 state v. Oliver_P- 8.doc.



count 1), one count of child molestation in the first: degree against D,O.

count 11), and one count of attempted child molestation in the first degree

against D.M, (coup 111. CP 49-50. On August 24, 2011, the State again

amended the information as to the offense date in count two. CP 146 -147;

On August 23, 2011, the case proceeded to a jury trial before the

Honorable Susan K. Serlso. I RP 3. 'Trial began with a child hearsay

hearing in which the court ruled that Statements made by D.O. to her half-

sister and a forensic interviewer would he admissible at trial. 1 RP 70.

The court considered rnotions in lit - nine brought by both patties.

I RP 77; CP 26-31, CP 1'€ 8 --112; see h1fra pp. 10 -13. The State moved

to preclude reference to D.O.'sstep father Tenn Whitworth's status as a

resex: ol'.fender. CAP 26-3 1. The court granted the State's motion,

finding that the evidence was not relevant. 2 RP 95,

After hearing the evidence, the jury convicted defendant of child

rape In the first degree agairtst D.0, (count 1) and child molestation in the

first degree against D.O. (cou,tt 11), 4 RP 580 --581 CP 231, 232. ` be jury

was unable to reach verdict for count III regarding D.M. 4 IMP 580 --581;

233.

At sentencing, the court imposed a low -end !sentence of 129

months to life imprisonment on the rape of a child in the first degree

The Skate trill re:er to the verbati m report of proceed ings as fo1lows: The four
sequentially paginated volunmes referred to as I -4 willbe referred to by the volume

umber followed by

2 - State v. 01 :r.t'r_t dtc



conviction and 72 months to life, imprisonment on the child molestation in

the first degree conviction, to be served concurrently. 4RI-

CP 263-279,

Defendant filed this timely notice of appeal on Novernber 10,

2012, CP 289-308,

1 Facts

a. Family .ftikaqundand Relationsh' Is

Defendant began dating Ms. Whitworth in 1993. 2 RP 118-119,

When the two decided to move in together, Ms. Wrhit'vvorth had two

children of her own. a daughter, Dail (born in 1992 and a son, T.M.

born in 1993). 21 ' 118. Some tinne later, defendant and Ms, Whitworth

married and gave birth to a girl, E,O. (bom in 1997), 2 RP 126-127, In

1991, Ms, Whitwoi gave birth to her and defendant's second child, a

girl, D.O. 2 RP 128. The family relationships are represented in the

following diagram:

3 - State v. OtivmRB.doc.



Defendant's

Parents (Bonnie &
Maynard Oliver' )

Ms, Whitworth

D.M.

born in
1992)

T.M.

born in

19 93)

Defendant

Eo

born in

D.O.

born in

At some point after D.O.'sbirth, Ms. Whitworth's relations.Wp

with defendant began to deteriorate, 2 Rl' IN - In February 2002 Ms.

Nkl moved out of the house andall, four children remained with

defendant. R2 P 130-131. Defendant and all the children then moved in

with defendant's parents to a home in Bonney Lake. 2 RP 130, N11s.

Whitworth had visitation with her children for three yveekends out of the

month and two weeks in the summer. 2 RP 132 The visitation routine

becat the "status quo. " 2 R-P 13 3, 165_166.

2 Ms. Whitworth's divorce - firom defendant bee-aine finalized in January, 2003, 2 RP 132,

4- Sty e v, Oliver: RB.&c



b, . 5'lee -& , jjg - louse inpip &E

Bonnie and Maynard Oliver's house in Bonnie Lake. has fluee

bedrooms upstairs and a large recreation room downstairs that was

partitioned into two bedrooms. 21 1314 3 RP 388. D.M, slept in her

own bedroom upstairs. 2 RP 134, E1.0. and D.O. shared a room together

upstairs. 2 RP 134, bonnie. and Maynard Oliver also slept together in a

bedroom upstairs, 2 RP 134. T.M. and defendant slept downstairs, in the

same area, but in different beds. 2 RP 134, The sleeping arrangements

changed in 2007 or 2008 when D.M. moved out of the house and in with a

friend. 2 RP 135. E.0, moved into the room that D.M. used to sleep in,

leaving D.O. in a room by herself. 2 RP 136.

T.M. moved out of the Bonney Lake house when he was about 13

years old and lived with Ms. Whitworth, but then moved back to the

Bonney Lake house in March 2009 when he was about 16. 2 RP 137-138.

Ms. Whitworth testified thatT.M. moved out of the Oliver's house agpin

in June 2009 and lived with a friend. 2 RP 137,

C. Sexual Abuse

On September 5, 2009, Ms, Whitworth received a troubling phone

call from her oldest daughter, D.M., in which D,M. was crying and related

that her father (defendant) had exposed himself to her when she was a

yotm-g girl. 2 IZ-1- 140. Ms. Whitworth subsequently asked her youngest

5 - Staid C. OliverAB,doc



daughter, D.O., if defendant had ever touched her, to which D.0,

responded by curling up in a "little ball on the couch" and crying.

2 RP 142. D.O. later testified that, beginning when she was five years

old, defendant -, woutd insert his fingers into D.O.'s vagina and - feet her

breasts
3

3 R-P 254--255, 2601

On September 9, 2009, D.O. reported the abuse to Ms. Patricia

Mahaulu-Stephens, a child forensic interviewer at the Pierce County Child

Advocacy Center at the Mark Bridge Children's Hospital campus. 2 RP

198, 215, D.O.'sstatements to Ms. Mahaulu- Stephens were recorded in a

formal interview setting. 2 RP 212 At trial, Ms. Mahaulu-Stephens

described her occupational training and interview techniques, 2 RP 199—

200,203. Ms. Mahaulu-Stephens did not testify as to the details of her

interview with D.0. The video recorded interview between Ms. Mahaulu—

Stephens and D.O. was admitted and shown to the jury. 2 R1 218,

In the forensic interview, D.O. details sexual abuse by defendant

that began when D.O. was five years old. RP 260, D.O. described that

defendant would feel tinder RO.'s underwear and "have his hand straight

out and move it side to side." Exhibit I -A (I7:50). 4 D.O., also explained

that "sometimes a finger , Nould go in but it wouldn't go fair, itwould hurt,

Ms. Whitworth noted that DD, has since experienced behavioral changes; namely, that
she has nightmares, she began wetting the bed again and sht's vent' fearful ofa lots:
things," 2 RP 142.
4 The State will refer to the time elapsed into the amial interview rather than tilt
tirnestapip oil the DVD imace ftselC

6- State v, Uivcr.Rfldo;



and I told him it hurt, andsornetimes, he would leave but most of the time

he would stay." (17:50), On at least one occasion, defendant licked

D.O.'s stomach. 3). DA further related that defendant would

punish her if she looked at him during the sexual abuse, "[ ... ] if he caught

me looking he would hit me [ ... ] on my arm [. J. Sornetimes he would

just slap me and sometinies he would punch me. [ ... ]. Sometimes he

would grab any wrist and I had bruises all over my Nwist from1 1.

25A.0). D.O. told Ms. Mahaulu-Stephens that the abuse did not occur

outside of her bedroom. (20,02). D.0, recalled that the most recent

incident of defendant's abuse occurred about one month prior to the

interview with Ms. Mahaulu-Stephens, (1 D.O. also said that one

time when she was nine, she was going to the bathroom and "blood came

out." (29:48), (36

During the interview, D,O. also related that her brother T.M. had

abused ; tier, but said that it "[ ... ] was a long time ago. I don- 't remember

how long ago. I just don't remember it happening very recently," When

asked to explain the abuse fronCF.M., D.O. said "I really don't remember

what happened." (26:39).

D.O. testified at trial, nearly two years after her forensic interview

with Ms. Mahaulu-S 3 R-P '.'1 D.0, testified that defendant's

acts of sexual abuse occurred not only upstairs at the Oliver residence, but

also downstairs, 3 RP 251. She did not tell this to Ms. Mahaulu-Stephens

during the R)re.nsic interview because she did not remember it at that time.

7- stair: v. Ofiyer,R(3,doc



3 R-P 25 1. D.O. also testified that defendant's fingers went into her vagina

more than five times. 3 RP 255-256, D.O. explained that sne did not

report the abuse sooner because she "was aftaid of not being -able to see

defendant] again." 3 RP 261.

D.O. also testified thatT,M, had sexually abused her. 3 RP 248--

250, She described the abuse ofT,M. in greater detail thart in the f0rellSiC

interview, She explained that T,M. touched her vagina with his had and

that she knew it wasT.M. because she could see him. 3 R-P 2% She also

testified that neither T.M. , s finger nor any part of his body penetrated her

vaoina, 3 RP 250.

Ms. Cheryl Hanna-Truscott, a medic it examiner at the Child

Abuse Intervention Department at the Mary Bridge Hospital campus and

an advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP), conducted a medical

examination ofD.0 shortly after D.O. completed her forensic interview

with Ms. Mahaulu- Stephens. 3 RP 288, 292, Ms. Hanna-Truscott

testified that D.O. was "premenarche.^`' Ms. Hanna-Truscott'srnedical

examination of D.O. revealed a blunted crescentic hymen" and that

flhis hymen appearance could be residual from healed penetrating

trauma or a variant of the normal." 3 RP 305. Ms, Hanna-Truscott was

5 Ms. Hanna-Truscott. explained thatb6ig "premenarche" meant that "[D.0.] ha gone
through pubeiV; she hasn't started having her periods." 3 R-P 295.

8- State Y, OINwABA(.1c.



concerned by the findings and noted that "[i]t's very rarely that we see

that." 3 10 30'2

D,O,'s older sister D.M. also testified at trial. 3 RP 313, DAM.

test that D.O. had confided in her regarding defendants acts of sexual

abuse. 3 RP 3' )0, 110. told D-M. that"she didn't feel like she was a

virgin any more" and that "she thought she bad started her period," 3 RP

330.

The defense called defendant'sr-nother, Bonita Oliver, as a witness.

Ms, Oliver testified that"[D.O] stated she wanted to be with her mother

constantly." 3 RP 384. Ms. Oliver also testified that T,M. "started acting

more aggressive and angry, very angry" once his mother and defendant

divorced. 3 RP 3 -90. T.M. was"especially rough on [D.Oj" and [he

would '*[- — ] tackle her and hurt her [ ... ]." 3 RP 390.

The defense called defendant's father, Maynard Oliver, as a

witness. Mr. Oliver repeated much of the same testimony given' by

defendant's mother, namely, that T,M, had an anger issue and that it

seemed like [110.] always wanted to be with her mom." 4 RP 4 442.

Defendant also testified as a witness in his owii, behalf, denying

that he sexually abused any of his children. 4 RP 466, 492, He described

T,M. as having "always been short fused" and explained that "it wouldn't

take him long to explode [.. ]," 4 RP 477, Defendant testified that T,M,

hurt D. 3. and the rest of his siblings. 4 PP 478. According to defendant,

T.M, hit D.0, in the face with a cord and then punched defendarit in the

9- state V, olivenp-Rdoc



face. 4 RP 4 Defendant also Testified, like his mother and father, that

D.O. wanted to live with her mother, 4 RP 517.

C, ARGUMENT.

I . THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN

REFUSING TO ADMIT IRRELEVANT
IF" VIDENC F"

Defendant argues that the trial court erred in excluding evidence of

Glenn Whitworth's status as a registered sex offender and that suchr,

exclusion violated his constitutional right to present a defense. Each of

these clahns, however, raises distinct issues regarding the proper standard

of review," Whether the trial court properly excluded Glenn Whitwwth's

sex oJffender status is reviewable only for an abuse of discretion.

a, The trial court did not abuse its discretion in

ra-ntinR the State's motion in firnine to

pre lodes: reference to Glenn Whitworth's
status as a registered sex offender when such
evidence was irrelevant..

A trial count's ruling on arnotion inlimine oval I not be disturbed

absent an abuse of the court's discretion. Statev—Paivell, 126 Wn,2d 244,

258, 893 R2d 615 (1995). "'A trial court abuses its discretion only when

its decision is manifestly wireasonable or is based on untenable reasons or

grounds," State v. CJ., 11 48 Wn.2d 672, 686, 63 fl3d 765 (2003 1 ). A

And as such, will be addressed separately, -See injla p, 13 for discussion of defendant's
constitutional right to present a complete defense.

10- State v. Oliver.RR.doc



discretionary decision is manifestly upureasonable if it "is outside the range

of acceptable choices, given the facts and the applicable legAl standard."

State v. Lamb, — P.3d — , 201 WL 5316890 (2012), quoting Powell, 1216

Wn,2d 244 at 258. A discretionary decision "is based on 'untenable

growmis' or made tor 'untenable reasons' if it rests on facts unsupported in

the record or was reached in applying the wrong legal standard." State V.

Rohrich, 149 Wn.2d 647, 654, 71 P.3d 6' ) 8 (2003) quoting State v.

Rundelmist, 79 aria. App, 786, 793, 905 P.2d 922 (1995).

Under ER 401, evidence is relevant if it has "any tendency to make

the existence of any fact that. is of consequence to the determination of the

action more probable or less probable than it would be without the

e ' dence" ER 401, Stich evidence is admissible un under ER 403,vI I

the evidence is prejudicial so as to subsuntially outweigh its probative

value, confuse the issues, mislead the jury, or cause any undue delay,

waste of time, or needless presentation of cumulative evidence. A

defendant seeking to introduce evidence connecting another person to a

crime must show proof of connection, "such as i train of facts or

circumstances [that] tend clearly to point out someone besides the prisoner

as the guilty party." State v. Rehak, 67 Wn. App. 157, 162, 8 P.2d 651

1992), review denied, 120 Wn.2d 1022, 844 P.2d 1018 (1993). Such

proof of connection requires "a clear nexus between the person and the

crime." State v. Sfrizheus, 163 Wn, App. 820, 83 1, 262 P, )d 100 (201

1 1 - Suitt v, Oliver.RB,doc



Here, the, State moved to preclude reference to Glenn Whitworth's

sex offender status in a motion in limine. CP 203 1 . Defendant filed a

response to the State's motion, arguing that Glenn Whitworth's sex

offender status was relevant to establishing what D.0, knew she had to

overcome in order to live with her mother, CI' 11 :x- 142 at 122. That is,

by introducing D.O,'sknowledge of Glenn WhitNortli'ssex offender

status and establishing that D.O. wanted to live with her mother, it would

provide a greater motive for D.D. to fa sift' instances of abuse at the hand

of her father. GP 113-142 at 122. Defense counsel repeated this

argument again during the pre-trial hearing. 2 R-P 89-90, After listening

to the defense's argunient. the court stated that "[, _ ] I really have a hard

time understanding getting, over the first hump of why his status as a sex

offender would be at all relevant," 2 RP 92, The court ackilowledged

defendant's arguirient --- the theory that D.O. fabricated instances of her

ffither's alleged abuse "to get out of that house"—yet still believed the

evidence was irrelevant to prove that point, 2 RP 93. Nevertheless,

defense cowisel insisted that the evidence was relevant because "[ ... ] it's

connected to that issue of seeing her brother and :sister living [with D.O.`s

mother] and wanting to be in that envirownent 2 Fill 94. Once

again, the court rc.jected this argument and concluded that Glenn

Whitworth's sex offender status was not relevant, 2 94,

The trial court did not abuse its discretion in granti the State's

motion in limine to preclude reference to Glenn Whitworth's sex offender

12- SIBW "'. Oliver.RBAIC



status. Glenn Wliftworth is a registered sex offender living with D.C).'s

mother and is prohibited -from being around children (although D,M. end

T.M. have allegedly been around him), this establishing that a registered

sex offender lived with D,O,'smother made it less likely that D.O. would

be permitted to live with her. 2 RP 93, 3 RP 264.

It was not defendant's argument that Clean Whitworth was

responsible for the abuse of D.O. 2 RP 89. Glenn Whitworth was never

around D.O. during the dates of sexual abuse, 2 RP 89-90. With no

practical connection between Glenn Whitworth and D.O.'sabuse, he is no

different from the six registered sex offenders in D.O. 9 s neighborhood and

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